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ABSTRACT

William Henry Oliver was born on Yovembaer 4, 1903 to
Rev, and Mrs, James Harriascn O0liver In (ndian Mound, Tennessee.
Te attended elementary schools In Stewart and Montgomery
Gountles and graduated from Dover High Schiool in 1922. After
spending three years al Southwestern Presbyterian Unlversiiy
in Slarksville, he transferred to Vanderbilt University in
Nashville, graduating from college in 1926.

William Henry Oliver's first position after college
was at Jere RBaxter High School in Nashville, Tennessce., He
taught English there one year. He movel to Ayden, Worth
Carolina 1In 1927 where he taught Math and Zinglish at Tureka
College, then the educational institution for the Frec Will
Baptist denominatlon. In May of 1928, he married Paullne
"leCall in Nashville and they returned to North Carolina to stay
until Bureka closed its doors in December of 1923. Mr. Oliver
returned to lashville to become a salesman for Nashville Life
and Accldent Insurance Company.

#illiam Henry Oliver has had many experlences as a
Free Will Baptlst minister, He bezan preaching in 1923 at the
FMirst Christisn Church in Dover. He snment several sumue»s
thereafter in evangelistic work. He beca'ie an ordained minis-
ter in October, 1924. He helped to establlsh and pastored for
two years the East Nashville Free Will Baptist Church. Jthor
pastorates have included the Ayden Fres #ill Baptist Church in
Jorth Carolina, Bethel, Bethlehem, Olivet, and Dunbar's

Chapel Fre- Wi1ll Baptist Churches in middle Tennessee.



William Henry Oliver has spent thirty-five years of
his 1life as a public educator. In 1929, he became both a
teacher and the princlpal of Klngston Sorings Sehool in
Cheathamn Count;. [n 1930, he taught at Hume-Woge In Naslhwille.
Mrom 10321937, he taught a d was the Activitles Vanager at
zast NWashville High School. He served as assistant principal
for twe years and held the principalshlp at East for sighteen
vears. World War II was fought during this time. He wrote
Dear Joe, which was dedicated to hls former students and one
teacher who died in that war. The Board of HEducation elected
him as assistant sunerintendent in 1957. In December of that
year, he became the superintendent and retained the mosition
for seven vears untll Nashville Clty Schools and Davldson
County Schools merged Into Metro.

William Ilenry Ollver retired on one day in 1964 and
went back to work the next, this time to become a collepge
professor at Belmont College. He remained there until 1970,
teaching in the English =2nd Education Departments. In the
fall of 1270, he joined the faculty at Frec /11l Baptist
Blble College, teaching English and Education courses. Ile

remains in that pos'ltion at the present.
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Chapter 1

THE FOUNDATION IS LAID
(1903-1926)

William Henry Oliver was born on November 4, 1903, in
Indian Mound, Tennessee. Indian Mound is a small village in
Stewart County, about twelve miles from the county seat of
Dover., His parents were James Harrison Oliver (Jimmy) and
Frances Lavonia Hembree Oliver.l He was named William for his
grandfather, William Harrison Oliver, and Henry for hils
uncle, Henry Oliver.2

James Harrison Oliver was born on April 6, 1882, near
Cadiz, Xenbtucky. His parents were William Harrison Ollver and
Susan Litchfleld Oliver., They moved to Temessee when James
was about two years old. J., H. Oliver's father was a very
versatile person - a carpenter, a timberman, a farmer, and
even a writer of poetry. His mother was a homemaker who was
especially fond of flowers. This couple had eleven children,
ten of whom lived to reach adulthood. They were very devout
Christians. Like most Southerners after the Civil War, they

were poor, hard-working people. The Olivers are burlsd in

1.
Nilliam Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, July 24, 1974.

2
Statement by William Henry Oliver, personal interview,
August 6, 1974,



2
the Hayes Cemetery, near the Montgomery-Stewart County line
in Stewart County.

Frances Lavonia Hembree was born on October 23, 1884,
near Liberty, Tennessee. She was the youngest of six children
born to David Anderson Hembree and Ephelda Hembree. She was
really just a little mountain girl. She knew the old ballads
and most of the wild flowers, which she loved very much. Her
parents moved from East Tennessee to Middle Tennessee when
she was about thirteen years old. They lived in the Montgom-
ery and Stewart County areas. Her parents were also devout
Christiens with some musical ability. Her father was a Civil
War veteran, probably on the side of the North, since he was
an East Tennessean, This family was of the pioneer type. The
Hembrees had lived in Missouri for a time, which was then
rather wild. The Hembrees are buried in the Moreland Grave-
yard, an old Cherokee graveyard, near Indian liound. No one
1s buried there except the Morelands and William Henry
Oliver's maternal gr&ndparents.;5

The children of James Harrlson Oliver and Frances
Lavonia Hembree Oliver were seven. William Henry was the
firstborn. John Anderson Oliver was born on May 12, 1906. He
presently resides in Nashville, Tennessee, after giving many

years to education in that clty. Dovie Frances Oliver was

3
William Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, July 24, 1974.



born on March 1, 1908.4 She died with whooping cough.5 She
lived just over a month, dying on April 8, 1908, James
Herschel Oliver was born on November 18, 1910. He now lives

on a farm in Robertson County near Springfield, Tennessee.
Myrtle Mae Oliver, now lMrs. Eddis Stanley, was born on August
27, 1914. She and her husband live in the Sango Community near
Clarksville, Tennessee. Bessle Pearl Oliver, now Mrs. Henry
Bates Miller, was born on February 1, 1917. She now resides

in Nashville, Tennessee. Ruby Bernice Oliver was the youngest,
born on December 23, 1919. She died from an accidental rifle
wound .

The Olivers lived in a house owned by Dr. J. B. Lahiff
when William Henry was born. The house was near the present
site of A. C, Moore's home, Shortly thereafter, they moved to
a house on the T. W. Seay farm near Indian Mound. It was
here that their second son, John, was born.

Little Henry's first memory dates back to about the
time of John's birth, He remembers seeing a cow jump over a
praling fence to get to her young calf. Included in his early
memories are those of his first school days. The Olivers
were living near Dick's Fork, which was up the hollow from

what is now the Indian Mound United Methodist Church. He

4Tbid,

5Statement by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, July 5, 1974.
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started to school at Indian Mound in 1909 in a bullding which
1s now the Masonic Hall. James Harrison Oliver was proud of
his oldest son as he took him to school that first day. He
did not accompany him later, but he usually sent his son in
the care of one of the neighbors. Hayden lcGregor was a faith-
ful companion to little Henry. Later, Hayden's younger
sister, Clarice, also accompanied Henry to school. For a time,
the Olivers lived on the Wilson Farm near the Rories. The
Rorie children and William Daley proved to be friends who
could watch out for Henry. Those were the days of the one-
room school when one walked to school with no concern about
busing.6 William Henry's first teacher was a Mrs. Fonnie
(Sally) Spilceland. Indian Mound had two teachers that year.
Mr. and Mrs. Fonnie Spiceland both taught and he was the
principal. That first year there was not a seat of his own
for little Henry. Little first graders sat with the big
girls way back in the room. When Henry tried to be creative
by drawing, his teacher thought he was wasting time., That
was before the day when teachers looked for creative
children. Even in those days there was "individuallzed
Instruction." During this time, each student was at work on
his studies while the teacher went around the room to help

any individual who needed it. Henry remembers one day when

Sstatement by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, August 6, 1974,
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this was in progress. All was qulet. Henry had to sneeze and,
as was his custom, he sald "Scat" afterwards. Fortunately,
no diseiplinary action was taken on this little fellow who
had disturbed the quiet of an individualized learning
center.'7 Thus began what was to be the polestar, the consum-
ing interest of William Henry Oliver - education.

The years of 1910 and 1911 were filled with events
that would stand out in the mind of William Henry Oliver for
years to come. Herschel was born in 1910 while the Olivers
were still living on the Wilson Farm. Sometime during the
year, they moved to the Flem Smith Place which was a little
closer to Indian Mound. Henry was now all of seven years
old.8 The house on the Smith Place had running water on the
back porch., It was piped in from a spring which was located
a short distance up a hollow from the house. This was of
real interest, for Henry had never seen anything like it
previously. It was during 1911 that Henry began that great
sport of fishing, He could always make hooks out of straight
pins and look forward to using real fishing hooks when his
uncle, Bill Hembree, came. On his walk to school, Henry had
to cross Dick's Fork Creek twice. The oldtimers said 1t wgs

ten degrees below zero that winter. Little Henry slipped

7Statement by William Henry Oliver, personal
Interview, July 5, 1974.

8Statement by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, August 6, 1974.



and fell into the icy waters of the creek. Half-frozen and
crying, he finally reached the school. Some of the big glrls
rubbed snow on hls hands, as thls was the remedy prescribed
to keep cold hands from hurting. It would take more than
thls to keep William Henry Oliver from school, although he
had thoughts of going home that day. School was out for the
year at Christmas time. Henry and his friends and relatives
enjoyed firecrackers that Christmas. Henry would have 1iked
to have continued his education for more than the five months
term. There was a subscription school with tuition of one
dollar per month, James Harrison Cliver would have liked for
Henry to have taken this work also, However, there was one
hindrance. He did not have the dollar.? Thus, Henry, along
with most of the chlldren in the community, put school aside
until the next fall,

James Harrison Oliver had been a sharecropper, a
preacher, and had made cross ties. He now decided to 1lnvest
in some farming equipment of his own and to rent a farm.
Thus, he and his family rented and moved to the Cherry Farm
in Cherry Hollow. This was later known as the Lewls Farm.

It 1s today the home of Everette Grizzard and is located
between Red Top on Highway Seventy-nine and the village of

Indian Mound. Henry's father bought some mules and the

Ipid,
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necessary farm implements. He rented about one hundred and
fifty acres of land for one hundred and fifty dollars a year,
The Olivers remained in this place for three years. James
Harrison's parents and two of his brothers, Alfred and Porter,
lived on the place, too., Eventually, still another brother,
Billy, came to the Cherry Farm. He died with tuberculosis,
leaving six children for his parents to lead to maturity.
Those were three dry years and money was tight. Hard worker
though he was, J. H. Oliver could not get ahead on hils
rented farm,

The Olivers were as close to the McGregor School now
as they were to Indian Mound. Having no school zoning laws,
they chose to attend McGregor.10 The school building was a
fairly new, one-room school then. It had been named for
Manson McGregor, a leader in the community. He was a member
of the school board who wanted a good school in his community.
The bullding also served as a meeting house for a Sunday
School on the first day of the week. The school was in a
wooded area. The McGregor School burned many years ago, but
the old cistern is still located on the site. As one goes
from Indian Mound toward Red Top, one may turn right about
one-half mile past the Cross Creek Baptist Church. One will
come within a half mile of the old school site., No.road leads

0
. Statement by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, July 5, 1974. '



to the actual site on the hill. Those people who once
attended McGregor can still spot those trees they climbed,tt
Is that really the hum of recitation? No, it is only memory's
imagination of some sixty or more years ago.

No longer did Henry have to walk to school by himself,
His brother, John, now accompanied him. Iron ore had been
taken from pits in many parts of Stewart County. The Oliver
boys went near several abandoned pits as they journeyed to
McGregor School each day. Henry and John were calmly walking
along one morning when they suddenly heard a frightening
noise, apparently coming from one of those old pits. Was it
a bear? Was it a wolf? The boys' hearts beat faster and fast-
er! The nearest way to school lay right by where that noise
originated. The two boys ran all the way home, never stopping
to think that the noise ecould have been only a stray dog.
What that noise was remains one of those childhood mysteriles.
It was enough to cause Henry and John to go back to Indian
Mound to school on the well-beaten path.

Dogs have always been special to William Henry Oliver.
It was on the Cherry Farm that he acquired his first very own
dog at the age of nine. It was a little black shepherd puppye.
Henry's stories, sermons, and lectures have always contained

his beloved dog stories.12

llstatement by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, August 5, 1974.

lgstatement by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, July 5, 1974.



Ten years old and time for Henry to learn to plow
came in 1913, The mules did not pay attention to Henry's
"Whoa." He set about to find something that they would heed.
The magic word proved to be "Wee." Thus, a small boy of ten
could be seen plowing on the Cherry Farm using "Wee" as he
commanded his mules to halt,

After three years on the Cherry Farm, moving day
arrived for the Olivers again., This time it was a move to
the Wright Moreland Property which was still near the present
Cross Creek Baptist Church. The stay there was rather short.
Henry's uncle Alfred Oliver's second marriage was to influ-
ence the Olivers' next move. Alfred married a widow, Mary
Bryant, and they soon separated. Alfred continued to live on
her farm, near Red Top, in Montgomery County. The J. H. Oliver
Family moved there to farm. This land 18 now a part of the
Fort Cambell Military Base. It was then near Clinard's
Store.15

The year in Montgomery County contained some memorable
events in the life of William Henry Oliver. Henry began shoot-
ing a gun there. Henry's father had bought a breech-loader
from Bill Hembree for three dollars. Henry and John took turns
shooting it when they went hunting. Of course, the boys

needed a gun for each. They bought a muzzle-loader for one

131 p14.
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dollar. When Henry was not working on the farm, he worked
for Tom Vaughan for a nickel an hour. In one day, he could
make fifty cents with which he could buy a box of shells
or a twenty-four pound bag of flour. These wages were
greater than the pennies his father had paid him for catching
tobacco worms. The year was not all work as Henry did go to
school when the term began. This term found him in the Plain
View School. The only thing recalled from that year was a
yell the teacher taught. It went like this:

Re mo ril

Ke mo kil

Polly wants a zigzagl

Polly wants a ki me!

Sis boom bahl

Plain Viewl Plain View!
Rahl Rah! Rahl

The teacher's name has long since been forgotten.15
None of these events are the most important ones of
Henry's twelfth year. It was during this year that he read
the Bible through for the first time and also becamé a
Christian., He was attending a revival that was being held in
the blacksmith shop at Needmore. Needmore 1s on the Lylewood
Road which runs from Highway Seventy-nine to the Cumberland
River at the point of the ferry crossing to Cumberland City.

It 1s in Montgomery County. Henry's father and Bill Hembree

l4wil11iam Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, September
21, 1974.

'151b1d.
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were preaching that week. Henry says, "I think that Dad was
preaching the night of my conversion."!® The Holy Spirit
convicted young Henry that night, and he believed on the
Lord Jesus Christ as his personal Savior. That same summer,
he was baptized in nearby Blooming Grove Creek by his
father. He then joined Dunbar's Chapel Free Will Baptist
Church which had been dedicated in May of 1914. The church
was full in those days with wagon loads of young people
coming to the services. Henry recalled many times when he had
to sit on the edge of the platform as all the pews were
filled with adults.17

The Oliver Family came back to Stewart County after
just a year in adjoining Montgomery County. It was a return
to the Moreland Place and McGregor School. Miss Virgle Butts
(later Mrs. Angers Seay), Miss Clarice Tucker, and Miss
Hattle Wallace (later Mrs. Robertson) were three of the
young ladies sent to McGregor to teach. McGregor was evident-
ly considered one of the least desirable positions in the
entire county. More than knowledge of subject matter and
professional ability was needed by teachers at McGregor. The
enrollment was approximately sixty students with as few as
four coming on bad weather days. The teacher's salary was

thirty dollars a month, and it took ten dollars of this

161114,

178tatement expressed by William Henry Oliver in a
sermon ("One Great Gathering") at Dunbar's Chapel (Indian
Mound, Tennessee), July 28, 1974,
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amount for room and board. Miss Butts received a ralse,
bringing her salary to thirty-two dollars, One must certainly
say, "Hats off to those girls who taught there." 8 One year,
they had to try out three teachers before they found the one
who would stay at McGregor.l9

The students at MecGregor hardly lacked amusement. The
students enjoyed such games as "Two-Eyed Cat" and "Fox in the
Morning, Goose in the Evening." Their most enjoyable sport,
however, was that of catching mice. Timber had been cut
around the school bullding, and stumps abounded on the
grounds. Mice could usually be found between the outer and
inner layers of bark. Yes, the boys were known to bring mice
inside to amuse the young ladies. A pond near the school was
surrounded by cattalls. There was nothing like blowing cat-
tails into the air. The boys also visited a cave down on the
bluff. Henry and Pete Terrell wandered off to this cave on
one occasion. Pete got scared because he thought a bear
might appear on the scene. The cave expedition was halted.zo

William Henry Oliver took his first trip to Dover,
the county seat, at the age of twelve. His uncle, Frank
Hembree, was preaching at a revival being held in the

MeGregor School. Some of the rowdy boys in the community

183tatement by William Henry Uliver, personal
interview, July 5, 1974.

195tatement by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, August 6, 1974.

2OStatement by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, July 5, 1974.
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became angry when Brother Hembree called attention to their
misconduct during the service. These fellows took revenge
by assaulting the minister on his way home. As Henry heard
the shots and was near the scene, he was called as a witness
when the case was tried in court.

It is rather difficult for one to imagine what
Indian Mound looked like some fifty to sixty years ago. Its
one real street was lined with businesses then - not houses
as 1t is now. There were some four or five stores there, plus
the grist mill. This mill was owned and operated by "Fur"
Vaughan. Henry Oliver took corn there many times. Mr. Vaughan
would have Henry pour water in the engine so that he could
get the mill started. Henry could make five cents this way,
and he considered that reason enough to be the first one at
the mill,?l

The Olivers lived on what was then lmown as Harrison
Hill for about a year. It was later the site of Jack Ford's
home and is today the site of the Bob Lewlis home. It was
there that Henry Oliver got his dog, Keno. He described
this dog simply as a wonderful dog. This was about the time
of Henry's seventh or eighth grade year, and Keno was to live
until about the time of Henry's college graduation. Among

the teachers at Indian Mound in those years were Flossie

21Statement by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, August 6, 1974,
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Wolfe, a Miss Gunson, and Grace Coppedge.

William Henry Oliver next moved with his family to
the Charlie Blane Place. [t was about one-fourth of a mile
from Indian Mound. The family lived there about a year. It
was here that Henry's youngest sister, Ruby, was born in the
middle of the night on December 23, 1919, Henry was now six-
teen and old enough to go for the doctor. He rode his mule as
fast as possible to get Dr. C. V. Keatts, who lived up Dick's
Fork, Dr. Keatts had one of the first automoblles in the area.
Thus, he arrived at the Oliver home beforz Henry got back .22

In December of 1919, Henry had finished the first
half of the ninth grade at Indian Mound., The four members
of that class were Elva Moore Atkins, Oscar Vaughan, Gilbert
Stalls, and Henry 0liver.23 Mrs. Eunice Coppedge was thelr
teacher.

James Harrison Oliver was concernad about Henry's
education, When school was out at Christmas, he declded it
might be best for his eldest son to contiaue his high
school education at Dover, Two former Indlan Mound residents
had moved to Dover since their marriages. They were daughters
of Tom Seay, namely Lillian (lMrs. John Bruton) and Lora
(Mrs, Harvey Bruton). William Henry Oliver was to board at

Lillian's and attend Dover High School. 0a January 5, 1920,

22714,

25'Nilliam Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, September
21, 1974,
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he and his father walked to the Cumberland River and crossed
at a ferry at what was then the Cross Creek Landing. It was
approximately three miles from Indian Mound. By noon, they
had reached the Long Creek Community. They had lunch with
their friends, Mr. and Mrs. Ed Wallace, and continued their
journey to Dover, taking most of the afternoon. It had taken
the better part of g day to go a distance which now takes
fifteen or twenty minutes.

Having arrived at the Brutons, Henry saw the nicest
house he had ever seen., It was a two story, white frame
house that sat across the street from the Fort Donelson
Methodist Church. The house is no longer standing, but the
church is still there and in use. William Henry Oliver knew
he could stay in school at least one month. He had sold a
raccoon skin for four dollars and fifty cents and an opossum
skin for two dollars and twenty-five cents to Angers Seay be-
fore leaving Indian Mound. He had purchased his first pair of
long pants, other than overalls, for fifty cents from a cousin
who had outgrown them. His father had done his part by selling
a calf for eleven dollars. Thus, the ninety-nine pound, six-
teen year old William Henry Oliver arrived in Dover to further

4
his education.2

Professor R. E. Gorham was the principal of Dover

~ 24Statement by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, July 5, 1974.
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High School.25 The first day was certalnly a new experience
to Henry Oliver, The boys and glrls lined up separately and
marched into the school, The students were allowed an hour
for lunch. As Henry started to the Brutons, he some way made
a wrong turn, but he did find his way back to their home in
time for lunch. Dover High School was then in the white frame
bullding still standing and now in use by the B and M Furni-
ture Store. Although Henry had purchased one pair of long ,
pants, he wore them only that first day. He went back to his
usual knee length pants and long stockings.

Henry Oliver's education did not terminate at the end
of one month., When his father came to pay his room and board,
the Brutons would not take anything, Henry worked around the
house and in Bruton's Drug Store on Saturdays in return for
his room and board., This establishment is still the only drug
store in Dover and now operates as Bruton and Webb Drugs.
Henry was treated as one of the famlily by the Brutons. During
the summers, he worked in the drug store for twenty-five dol-
lars a month plus his room and board, He also continued his
studies in the summers to be able to finish high school in
three years. Henry enjoyed his school work and always made

good grades.26

2591111 am Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, July 24, 1974.

265tatement by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, July 5, 1974.
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Henry Oliver attended both the Methodist and the
Christian Churches while living in Dover.27 He also attended
prayer meeting on Thursday night at a mission with the Brutons.
It was at one of these that he awoke to hear Mr, Bruton call
on someone else to pray "because Henry's asleep." He did not
attend any more as he was usually tired from studying and
prone to fall asleep when he was still.28

During his Senior year, William Henry Oliver was the
chalrman of the first Stewart County Historical Committee.
John Trotwood Moore was chairman of the Tennessee State His-
torical Committee and notified Henry of his appointment. "You
have been made chairman of your County Committee, the person-
nel of which is as follows: Prof. R. E. Gorham, W. C. Howell,
Hon. N. A. Link, L. S. McElroy, J. T. Reynolds, Hon. Joe W.
George, H. H. Bruton."2® Senate Bi1l Number one hundred and
sixty-four provided for such committees to collect county
records "to be preserved forever for the inspection of future

generations. . . ."50 The Stewart County Historical Committee

was actually organized on July 21, 1921. Mr. L. S. McElroy of

279111iam Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, July 24, 1974.

288tatenwnt by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, August 6, 1974.

29John Trotwood Moore to William Henry Oliver, June
22, 1921, William Henry Oliver Collection, Nashville,
Tennessee. Hereafter cited as the Oliver Collection.

30
Ibid,
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Dover was the secretary.’l This committee chose five sites to
be marked 1in Stewart County for thelr historlcal significance.
These were: Fort Donelson, Fort Henry, Forrest's Crossing,
Grant's Headquarters, and the Gunboat Landing.32

The Dover High School opened its doors in 1917. The
first graduating class in 1921 had only four graduates. The
faculty had four teachers through the twenties.35 One teacher
during those days was a Mr. Oakley Shelby.54 In 1949, Dover
High School became Stewart County High School when the facil-
ities were moved to the brick structure still serving the
youth of Stewart Gounty,So°

Twelve graduates comprised the 1922 Class of Dover
High School. They were: Emmie D. Joiner, Elva Moore, Helen
Brandon, Lydia Brandon, George Brandon, "Judge" Brandon
(uncertainty sbout his real name exists), Ezra Goforth, Rena

Lancaster, Lewls Rumfelt, Corinne Marlow, Katie Lee Thompson,

and William Henry Oliver. "We did not have a valedictorian,

31William Henry Oliver to John Trotwood Moore, July
21, 1921, Oliver Collection.

32
Statement by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, August 14, 1974,

SSDixie Parker Gorham, "History of Dover High School
and Stewart County High School, 1917-1971" (Dover, Tennessee;
Alumni Association, Stewart County High School, 1971).

(Mimeographed.)
34Statement by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, August 6, 1974.

55Gorham, op. cit.
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and the students were not ranked. Uncfflcially, my renk was
elther one or two. . . . There was never any official
averagling of grades."9® Elected representatives then, as now,
sent letters of congratulailons to graduates. Joseph W.
Byrnes, a Congressman from the S5lxth Dlstrict, received an
annovncement of the commencerent exerclses fronm Henry Oliver.
I's sent "a heart full of pood wishes for you in your every
undertaking. . . . " to Henry Cliver,°7

In the meantime, James Harrison Oliver had been con-
tinuing his own education., Durlng 1821, he had attended school
at Indian Mound. He then moved to Dover and graduated from the
eighth grade in 1922, the same year hls eldest son graduated
from high school. He took the teacher's exam at that tire,
passed, and recelved a teacher's certificate., J. H, Olivor
contacted the superintendent of schools in Montgomery
County, A, W, Jobe, He secured a position at the Briarwood
School.58 Thus, the Oliver Famlly moved from Stewart County
back 50 Montromery Countv in the fall of 1922, They llved
slightly up the Cumberlend River from Clarksville, as 1t was
then. The large brick house thsy occupled was on a bluff very

near where the south end of Cunningham Bridge is now. The

3641111am Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, July 24, 1974.

37Joseph W. Byrnes to William Henry Oliver, May 17,
1922, Oliver Collection.

583tatement by wWwilliam Henry Oliver, personal
Interview, July 5, 1974.
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bridge was In the process of being bullt at that time.°°

James Harrison Oliver next proceeded to enroll his
son, Henry, at Southwestern Presbyterian University in Clarks-
ville. Austin Peay State University is now on the same cam-
pus. Dr. Charles Diehl was the President of the college. J. H.
Oliver inquired as to any speclal instructions Dr. Diehl
might have for Henry. His reply was to urge him to wear long
pants. Now, here was a young man who had graduated from high
school 1in knee length pants, part of a suilt the Brutons had
so gracliously given him, Thus, J. H. Oliver bought his son
a new suit with the required long pants so that his son might
enter college appropriately dressed.?0 Whet a contrast to
present day dress codes on most college campuses|

Henry Oliver entered college in the fall of 1922 and
lived with hls family. He returned to Dover to work in the
drug store for the summer of 1923. One account is given of a
boat ride from Clarksville to Dover. "I left Clarksville yes-
terday about 12:00 o'clock, and reached Dover about 6 pem.
« « « I had a bilg time coming down on the boat. I steered the
boat myself. . . « I got off at Lock C and stayed a little
while."41 During the summer, Henry was the superintendent of

the Sunday School at the First Christian Church., It was here

59y111iam Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, September 21,
1974,

40statement, by william Henry Cliver, personal
interview, July 5, 1974.

41y1111am Henry Oliver to Herschel Oliver, June 20,
1923, Oliver Collecticn,
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that he preached his first sermon. In appreciation of his work,
the people gave him a pair of gold initialed cuff links at the
end of the summer.

Time came for Henry's return to college. His father
was teaching at Shady Grove and had moved to that community.
Henry and his brother, John, lived in the house the family
had occupied the year before. John was attending Clarksville
High School. The boys had only one bike between them. Thus,
one left early enough to reach his destination by walking.
The other washed the dishes, cleaned the house, and rode the
bike into town. John was walking down beside the railroad track
one day when he fell on the track and was struck by an oncom-
ing train. This ended the boys "batching." They moved into
Clarksville with Aunt Eliza Daley.42

William Henry Oliver was in need of financial assist-
ance if he were to continue his education. "The Free Will
Baptist Educational-Orphanage Campaign of Tennessee'" was able
to loan him some money. J. L. Welch was the President of this
organization, G. W. Fambrough its Secretary-Treasurer, and
W. B. Davenport its Financial Agent. The Board of Education
consisted of J. L. Welch, J. E. Hudgens, G. W. Fambrough,

J. H, Oliver, and G. T. Harris. On September 8, 1923, Henry

received one hundred dollars from this organization. He also

4ZStatement by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, July 5, 1974.
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received these words of admonition from Brother Fambrough,
"All a boy has to do is to get the will power and push his
case. It all 1s worth the price. Set your mark high and go
to it."45 On November 27, 1923, the Educa tional-Orphanage
Campaign sent Henry another check in the amount of one
hundred and fifty dollars.44 The next time Henry requested
money, there was none available. Brother Fambrough said he
was sorry to say that they had no money for students:

We have been collecting both the Educational and
Orphanage funds together, and have been keeping the funds
together and several have been subscribing and paying
exclusively to the Orphanage funds and a few days ago
the Ladies Aid called for their part of the funds and it
nearly left us blank for the present.

William Henry Oliver had seemingly reached an impossible
hurdle.

Henry Oliver took his finals at the end of the first
semester thinking that he would soon be leaving college.
Upon his completion of high school, he had received a
teacher's certificate in both English and Latin. The time had
come for him to use it, or so he thought. No money was avail-

. 4 :
able for that second semester's tuition. - "I was trying to

prepare myself to teach ministers and other church workers at

4SSG. W, Fambrough to William Henry Oliver, September
8, 1923, Oliver Collection.

441114, , November 27, 1923, Oliver Collection.

4SIbid., December 20, 1923, Oliver Collection,

483tatement by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, July 5, 1974.
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our F. W. B. college, Eureka, at Ayden, N, C."47 God knew
that was Henry's goal. In the mail, he recelved a check for
one hundred dollars from G. W. Fambrough, who did not know
how badly Henry needed the money. This was a gift - not a
loan, 48 Henry's education was not to be interrupted.

On March 14, 1924, G. W, Fambrough sent Henry twenty-
five dollars, another loan from the Educational=-Orphanage
fund. This letter was wpitten on his stationery. He was a
dealer in "general merchandise, garden and field seeds."*?
Seven days later, he malled Henry thirty-five dollars to buy
a new suit. Apparently, this was a gift. He thought the young
minister would be golng out among the people and "If you go
out before our people they will expect you to be neatly
dressed."so

Henry's parents would have liked to have been able to
have helped their son finaneially:

Son 1t makes us both feel sad to know that you need
money and we are not able to give it you, but I think
there will be some way prepared for us if we do our part
and put our trust in the Lord. . . . Yes son I know that
God will care for us and I know that he has cared for us

through the past and I bell eve heSYill continue to care
for us if we will only trust him.

4741111am Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, July 24, 1974.

481 pia.,

4%, w, Fambrough to William Henry Oliver, March 14,
1924, Oliver Collection.

501pid., March 21, 1924, Oliver Collection.

51Mrs. J. H. Cliver to William Henry Oliver, March 12,
1924, Oliver Collection.
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Is there any better way to show that the Olivers gave Henry
something more vital then money? Trust in the Lord was to see
him through life's rough spots long after those godly parents
had gone to be with the Lord.

Williem Henry Oliver went to Dover for the graduation
exercises in 1924, He was the only graduate of Dover High
School in college at that time. Professor Gorham asked him to
speak to the graduates and to present the diplomas, In the
audience sat "Grandma Bruton" listening proudly as Henry
spoke. At her side, one of Henry's favorite dogs, Ole John
Cralg, also heard that familiar voice. The dog ran and leaped
onto the stage to greet a friend come home. It took some
effort to remove the dog and to continue with the proceedings.

At the end of his second year in college, William
Henry Oliver received an appointment to West Point from
Joseph W, Byrnes.52 Immediately, the mail began bringing to
him letters from various preparatary schools seeking to get
him to enroll so that he would pass the entrance exam., Among
these were: the National Preparatory Academy, Cornwall-on-
Hudson, New York; Marion Institute, Marion, Alabama; and the
U. S. Hall West Point-Annapolis Coaching School, Columbia,
lMlissouri. The latter seemed to exert the most ocutstanding

means of persuasion. Included in the material mailed to

528tatement by William Henry Oli ver, personal
interview, August 6, 1974.
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Henry Oliver were letters from U. Sebree, Rear Admiral U. S.
Navy, E. H. Crowder, Judge Advocate General of the War Depart-
ment, and John J. Pershing, Commander in Chief of the American
Expeditlonary Forces. All of these, of course, praised U, S.
Hall for the excellent work he was doing as President of the

53

Coaching School. = All these efforts were in vain, however, as
Henry Oliver did not accept his appointment to West Point.
Henry was preparing for the work he felt God had for him to do,
He saw no point in his going to West Point. Robert C. Davis,
Ma jor General, the Adjutant General, sent Henry Ollver a
letter:

The receipt of your letter of November 5, declining
appointment as a candidate for the Military Academy at
West Point is acknowledged. Accordingly, your conditional
appointment as principal candidate from the sixth Con-
gressional dlstrict of Tennessgz has been cancelled on
the records of the Department.

William Henry Oliver spent the summer of 1924 in

evangelistic work. He was also the President of the State

- During his last

Convention of the Free Will Baptist League.®
two years of college, he served as the first pastor of the
East Nashville Free Will Baptist. Church. These are simply men-
tioned here for the sake of chronology. The detalls are to be

found in a later chapter.

53U. S, Hall to William Henry Oliver, September 22,
1924, Oliver Collection.

54Robert Cc. Davis to William Henry Oliver, Novanber
11, 1924, Oliver Collection.

558tatement by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, August 6, 1974.
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The 1924-1925 term was Henry Ollver's last at South-
western Presbyterian University. He attended George Peabody
College during the summer of 1925 because Vanderbilt would
not give him credit for the two years of Bible he had taken
at Southwestern.“® In the 11, he went to VAnderbilt. He
lived with Mrs. Fannie Polston, a leader of the East Nashville
Church, at 318 Woodland Street for a time. He lived in Kissam
Hall at Vanderbilt about half of his Senior year.®' He was
graduated from Vanderbilt in the spring of 1926, He had
triple majors: namely in Latin, Greek, and English, plus ed-
ucation courses which constituted essentailly another major.
His rank in his class was not especially high as he was pas-
toring the East Nashville Church. "This affected my grades in
college. I have never regretted this, however. The work at

East Nashville was 1mportant."58

561111 am Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, July 24, 1974.

svstatement by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, August 14, 1974.



Chapter 2

BEGINWING TO BULLD
1926-1930

William Henry Oliver spent the summer of 1926 in e-
vangelistic work. Another chapter will provide a sketch of
those activitles. Oliver also spent some time trying to find
a teaching position for the fall., Among others, the Battle=-
ground Academy in Franklin, Tennessee, Trevecca College in
Nashville, and various public schools were considered.

The fall of 1926 found Henry Oliver teaching English
and Latin at the Jere Baxter High School in the Inglewood
section of Nashville. His salary for that year was one hun-
dred and thirty dollars a month., In addition to his teaching
duties, he coached the girls in basketball and the boys in
football and baseball.1 His camment on his first day as a
teacher holds a sober thought. "Today I began my career as a
school teacher. I am reminded of . . . 'Today we launch.
Where shall we anchor?'"2 During this year, Henry was again

living with his brother, John. They lived in a dormitory at

lstatement by William Henry O0liver, personal
interview, July 5, 1974.

241111am Henry Oliver to Ethel Walker, September 1,
1926, Oliver Collection.
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Trevecca where John wasg a student.®

The spring of 1927 witnessed Henry receiving a letter
from R. B. Spencer, President of Eureka College in Ayden,
North Carolina. This brought an offer to coach and teach
Latin and Greek there for the next term. The offer was ac-
copted.® Oliver was to attend George Peabody College durling
the summer before moving to Ayden.° This work was his first
attempt at graduate education. He dropped out of school
before the summer ended to do evangelistic work. He did not
finish or get credit for any of the courses in which he was
enrolled.6

It is necessary to give a thumbnail sketch of Eureka
College in Ayden, North Carolina. A Free Will Baptist Semi-
nary was founded in 1896 with its first building completed
in 1898. A College campaign was begun by Free Will Baptlsts
in 1920. Eureka College was founded on September 8, 1925 and
the buildings occupled on the same date. The purpose of the
school was to offer orthodox instruction in line with the
Bible for ministers, missionaries, Sunday School Superinten-

dents and teachers, and those intending to engage in church

5Statement by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, August 14, 1974.

4Statement by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, July 5, 1974.

5sundav School Department, The Free Will Baptist, XL
(June 15, 1927), 12.

64i11iam Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, October 24,

1974,
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auxiliary work. Other denominations were cordially invited
to send students to Eureka., Eureka maintalned a standard
high school and a two year college program offering courses
in Bible, church history, doctrine, and missions. Other
courses related to church work were offered.’

"Rev. William Henry Oliver of Nashville, Tennessee
will teach science and coach athletics."S What had happened
to his offer to teach Greek and Latin? Not enough students
were interested in Greek for it to be offered. He dld not
teach Latin because it became necessary for him to take the
math and English classes., He did coach boys' and girls' bas-
ketball and boys' football., Mr. Oliver also directed a music
group and taught "Rudiments of Music" in the evenings. He
did not feel well qualified for this, but he had done a 1it-
tle work like this for Mrs. Eva Thompson Jones, his voice
teacher in Nashville, on radio station WDAD. "I guess my
teaching was better than nothing.”9 Eureka pald lr. Oliver
one hundred and fifty dollars a month for his services.
Though the work proved to be neither what the first offer
was nor what it was published to be, young Oliver knew Eureka
was where the Lord wanted him in the fall of 1927. This was

the end toward which he had prepared himself. A dream was now

7ugureka College," The Free Will Baptist, XLIV (Au-
gust 8, 1928), 10.

8”Eureka College News," The Free Will Baptist, XL
(August 24, 1927), 6.

%William Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, October 24,

1974,
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realized.lo
When one goes to a new place, first opinions of that
place are of interest. Henry wrote home and sald that Bureka
was not much school, in a way, but he gave ample hope that it
would become a great one. There were about sixty-nine stu-
dents and eight teachers. The Administration bulldineg was
good enough for "Peabody or Vanderbilt, far better than any-
thing at S. P. U." The work done was good. The foremost point
though was the place young Oliver thought Eureka should take
in the Free Will Baptist denomination.
If the FIB denomination fails to support Eureka,
« + o L think that the entire church should be absorbed
by other churches. . . . It seems that this is the time

God has planned for a nationwide FWB awakening. If we
fail to wake now, we ought to sleep forever.

This chapter will finish the story of Eureka, but not of the
Free Will Baptist denomination. Nearly a half century later,
Oliver was to again find himself writing on education and

this denomination.

Henry's duties in North Carolina were to include more
than just his work at Eureka. For the school year, he was to
have "some church work convenient to Ayden." President Spen-

cer found it gratifying to find a young man who was willing

. loSBatement b; #William Henry Oliver, Personal
interview, July 5,

11yi11iam Henry Oliver to Rev. J. H. Oliver, Septem-
ber 13, 1927, OUliver Collection.



31

"to serv
erve in a double capacity.nlg Rev. Oliver smssthad ut

the North Carolina State Convention on "Christian Duty" based
on Chrlst's words to Peter, "Feed My Sheep." It was at that
seme convention that President Spencer gave a forceful ad-
dress telling about what Eureka College really was.l® On at
least ogz occasion, Professor Oliver went to Kinston to
preach. In the spring of 1928, his duties involved using his
music abllity. The Woman's Auxiliary Convention of the Central
Conference met on March 28, 1928 at Spring Breanch in Greene
County, North Carolina. The special music was "directed by
Reve W. H, Oliver of Eureka College."15 He also wrote for the

denominational Ppaper, The Free Will Baptist, as he was the

reporter for the college.16 Henry was a member of the Eureka
College male quartet. They sang at many churches in Eastern
North Carolina. A hlghlipght for them was their performance

at a Billy Sunday Revival in the spring of 1928. The other
members of the quartet were R. E. Tripp (North Carolina), J. R.

Davidson (Georgia), and I. J. Blackwelder (Florida).17

12z, B. Spencer, "Eureka College," The Free Will
Baptist, XL (August 31, 1927), 4.

. 15"The Recent State Convention," The Free Will Bap-
tist, XIIV (September 21, 1927), 8.
"Eureka," The Free Will Baptist,

14
College Reporter,
XIIV (October 5, 1927), 1l.

on of the Central Conference,"

15vpuxiliary Conventi
March 7, 1928), 10.

The Free Will Baptist, XLIV (

16144111 am Henry Vliver to Rev. J. L. Welch, October

11, 1927, Oliver Collection.

- 17 1111am Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, February 23,
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Rev. Oliver was active in promoting Eureka not only

in North Carolina but in his home state as well. He was elat-
od when hls church in East Nashville was among the filrst to
respond to a request for supplies for Eurolka. "September

19 the express agent here at Ayden announcsad that a large

box had made a successful journey all the way from Nash-
ville . . ."18 Rev. Oliver was present at the Cumberland
Assoclatlion's Ministers Conference on December 28, 1927. This
was held at Cofer's Chapel in Nashville and Rev. J. L. Welch
was 1ts chalrman. Rev. Oliver is reported to have made an

interesting talk there.l9

Professor Oliver and D. B, Sasser
left for Tennessee on February 10, 1928, They arrived in
Nashville the next night. They vislted several rural churches
in their "four day drive for Tureka." Among these were Bethel,
Brandon's Chapel, Mt. Zion, Oakwood, Rock Springs, and Shady
Grove. The name of G. W. Fambrough appeared in the list of
contributors to the college. The total cash received during
the drive was two hundred and twenty-two dollars.20 In the
spring, the Bethlehem Ladies Aid in Cheatham County was to

send food to Eureka. The Heads Church in Robertson County

18"Eureka,“ The Free Will Baptist, XLIV (September
28, 1927), 9.

19"Cumber1and, Tenn., Assoc .
The Free Will Baptist, XILIV (January 18, 1923), 5.

2OD. B. Sagser, "Our Tennessee Trip," The Free #Will
Baptist, XLIV (March 14, 1928), 13.

iation Ministers Conference,
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also sent food, "including a ham of meat."2l And 1s it little
wonder that a Tennessean delivered the baccalaureate address
at Eureka? Rev. J. L. Welch was to speak at thls function on
May 27, 1928. "Rev. Welch . . . has been secured as speaker
. - » and those who know Mr. Welch can assure you that his
message Will be inspiring and uplifting indeed."2? Graduation
came and with 1t the end of the 1927-1928 term at Eureka.

Lt appears from what has been written thus far that
William Henry Oliver was completely absorbed in his school
and church work wlth no time to think of love, This is hardly
the case. It is true that he once wrote "I seem to be looking
« o« oy not for love, but for a life of service."23 He was
putting God first and trusting Him to take care of the de-
tails. He knew that if it was God's will for him to love and
marry that God would supply the right one. He corresponded
with and dated many girls over the years. He still states
that no one could have asked for a nicer group of girl
friends than he had, Then, there came the one who took the
"place of all of them and then some, "2*

Henry Oliver met Pauline McCall at Heads Church in

2lyi111am Henry Oliver, "HBureka," The Free #ill
Baptist, XIIV (May 2, 1928), 7.

22y§111iam Henry Oliver, "Commencement Noticel," The
Free Will Baptist, XIIV (May 9, 1928), 7.

to Catherine Trotter, April

23Wi1liam Henry Oliver
29, 1926, Oliver Collection.

24Statement by Williem Henry Oliver, personal

interview, November 29, 1974.
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the summer of 1926 when he was conducting a revival there.
She was visiting country cousins. As he approached the church
for the eleven o'clock service one day, he heard someone
playlng the piano. The music was far superlor to what he had
been hearing there. Upon enterlng the building the two were
introduced. There was, however, no romance for several
months. John dated her for a while before Henry did.25

Pauline was the only child of Mr. and Mrs. Albert
Bruce McCall., Mr. McCall was a victim of the flu epidemic of
1918. The McCalls were among the original settlers of Smith
County. They were professional people, people with more than
ordinary culture and refinement. Mrs. McCall was the former

lMattie Haynes. The Haynes Family were builders of roads,

engineers, and construction workers who had little interest

in formal education.26

Pauline graduated at the head of her class of about
four hundred at Hume-Fogg in 1927. She took a business and
secretarial course at Fall's Business College, finishing with

high honors and a teacher's certificate. She was very talented
27
in music, especially in piano and organ.

"Dad, Pauline and 1 are planning to be marrled next

June, 1f I can get your consent and Mother's. . . . I love

2541111am Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, October 24,

1974,

26w11113m Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, July 25, 1974.

2 ver to Dale Edwards, July 24, 1974.

Nilliam Henry Oli
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Pauline, -- I'm willing to stake my 1life on the proposition-
- and 1L want her with me,"2° Thus, the first plans for a
wedding were revealed.

The sunrise of May 22, 1928 was to shed its glow on
the newlyweds, Mr. and Nrs. Henry Oliver. Henry and Pauline
were married at her home in a "sunrise wedding" ceremony
performed about six o'clock by his father. Only a few close
friends attended. Mrs. Eva Thompson Jones and Hr. Joe
Carnbron sang, accompaniei by Miss Amanda Cunn. The couple
left immediately for North Carolina., One of Pauline's friends
took them to Murfreesboro. They met Rev. J. L, Welch there
and these three plus Herschel Oliver made their way to Ayden.
0f Pauline, Henry says, "What a girll What she gave up to
become my wifel We really went through some rough times
together, but she never complained. She loved me."29

The Olivers were in Ayden for the graduation exer-
cises at Rureka. In an account of "Commencement at Eureka'
we find, ". . . there is Prof. and Rev. W. H, Oliver, . . .
He has since his stay with us this year won the hearts, not

only of our own people, but the entire community . . . He .

is a worker, . . & interested in the cause of the Master and

28Wi11’1am Henry Oliver to Aev. J. H. Oliver, October
26, 1927, 0Oliver Collection.

291111iam Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, October 24,

1974,
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yet free from ostentation, He wins by his humble Christian

walk, "0

Henry and Pauline Spent the summer of 1928 in North
Carollna. He did some evangelistic work, mostly by using
his music for God's glory, He also hauled barnwood in a Reo
speedwagon at twenty-five cents ver hour. He worked for a
time as a carpenter's helper for Mr. E. W. Braxton at the
same wages. Thus, the summer of 1928 rolled alang.31

Printed material listed William Henry Oliver as the
principal of the High School and Instructor in mathematics

= He found

for the opening of Eureka in the fall of 1928.
himself 1living in his third home since arriving in Ayden. He
had lived in the boys' dormitory the previous year. He and
Pauline had a room with Mr, and Mrs. E. W. Braxton for a
time. The third home was a furnished house in Ayden which he
rented, Mrs. McCall, Pauline's Mother, came to live with the
Olivers. She took charge of the food program at Eureka at the
beginning of the fall tez*m.:":5 Professor Oliver continued

duties other than those at Eureka during this term also. This

is evidenced by a report of the Union lieeting of 1928. "W. H.

30"Cbmmencement at Bureka," The Free 'Will Baptist,
XLIV (June 5, 1928), 9.

SLNilliam Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, February 23,

\

1975,

S2nugupeka College," The Free Will Baptist, loc. cit.

1 3351111 am Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, October 24,
974,
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vliver, Director of Vocal Union" is 1listed undor "Electlon of

n i
officers.” He also sang in a quartet and rendered s "very

impressive solo, 'The Lost Sheep'" at the same meeting.34
Eureka sought for but never attained a sscure flaan-

cial base. The struggle for survival was a valianht one bub it

was destined for defeat,

Due to the lack of funds . . . the High School De-
partment has been indefinitely suspended. The Bible
Department, however, through the courtesy and favor of
Rev. L. R. Ennls, will operate through the spring months
WLthout.cost to the school. This is made possible b the
unsalaried services of brother Znnis,.35

Various attempts were nade to secure sufficilent funds

to prevent "indefinitely suspended" from becoming permaenently
closed. W. G. Asher sollicited the support of the ministers.
He was not a Free Will Baptist but a very "sympathetic out-
slder." He believed that if ministers had thc work at heart
that the people could be led in real giving to the Lord. °®
The women of the Little Rock Church of the Western Conference

in North Carolina called tne women to arms. "To our minds tle

loss of Eurcka College means the death of our denominatlon.

S%uynion Meetlnﬁ " The Free Will Baptist, XLIV
(December 5, 1928), 10-Ii.

7

U5”Eureka College High School Suspecnded," The Free
411l Baptist, XLIV (January 9, 1929), 12. - =

364. G. Asher, untitled article, The Free #ill
Baptist, XKLLV (January 2, 1929), 4.
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Can't we women |
Save 1tg"d7 ‘he sad ansver comlng from

posterity was to be Noe Lureka was permanently closed,

The adminiStrati’)n-classroom bullding later burned,v3

What was the boys' dormitory ati1 stands in Ayden as a
private residence with of course several changes, The
curtain had come down on Eureka's role in the drama of a
denomination. ias this to be the final act of the Free
Jill Baptists as several hag predicted that the closing of
Lureka would bring? Writ'ng in 1971, William Henry Oliver
sald that the stream of Free Will Baptist education simply
flowed underground when Bureka cloaed.59 God, in Ilis
frovidence, gave the Free Will Baptists another golden
opportunity to flow as a mighty river, That opportunity
continues ns Christian young peoplc are trained at Irec
Will Baptist Bible College and in turn zo forth to make

a mark for Christ in this age,

The closing of Bureka brought real disappointment

to young enry Olivere. Funds were not avallable to pay his
salary., He took an old typewriter and a violin as partial
comrensationes These had been given to Eureka by a studnet as

tultion because the student had no monev, With thesc iltems,

his wife, a heavy heurt, and shattered dreams, Oliver

'vis Bae Fa ---11»ps, "A Call to

D7+ i and !
i'rs. JLley Lamm Will Dontist

the Jomen of the F, #. B. Denomination," The Free
XLV {February 13, 1929), 10.
9C3tatoment by ~illiam Henry Oliver, personal
IntCPVie..', August 6, 1974
39 e r. "Flowing and Growing," Free
4illiam Henry Clive:
fill Baptlst DBible College Bulletin, Mareh/April, 1971, p.l.




39

returned to Nashville, Tennessee, Forty-one years later he

would again become g part of the maln stream of Free Will
Baptist education.

On December 10, 1929, Henry Oliver became a salesman
for the National Life and Accident Insurance Company. He did
not especlally enjoy this work. He felt that he was persuad-
ing people to buy something they really did not want. Henry's
health was not good; so he took his doctor's advice and quit
the Job to travel some. The travel came in a rather unusual
WaY-4O He sold candy, papers, magazines, and drinks to pas-
sengers on tralns that traveled to such citles as Atlanta
and St., Louis, Such a person was a newsboy, but on a traln
one was known as a news butch. The rallway employees address-
ed one as "Butch." Henry saw a lot of interesting people and
enjoyed the travel,

By the end of the summer, Henry Oliver was able to
resume his work as a teacher, having secured a position in
Cheatham County. He was the princlpal of Kingston Springs and
also taught all seven high school classes. The school hac

five teachers and ten grades. Oliver's salary was one hundred

and fifty dollars per month.*l iir. Oliver boarded with Mr. ad

lirs, Alton Mayes in this small town some twenty miles from

40s5tatement by William Henry Oliver, p ersonal
interview, July 5, 1974.

4ly111i am Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, July 25, 1974.
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Nashville. Schools there had wonderful support from the cit-
izenry. Durine the year, electric lights were installed in
the school. Mr., Oliver coached both boys' and girls! basket-
ball. The teams won most of their games, and the boys won
the county championship trophy. Mr. Oliver enjoyed the year
in Kingston Springs for personal reasons as well as for the
accomplisiments made at the school. "There were fields and
forests and streams a plenty and I did a lot of hunting and
hiking and rambling through fields and woods., Sometimes I
hunted for Indian arrowheads in the fields."%? He regained
his health completely which had been considerably impaired
by disappointment, 1llness, and overwork. Pauline usually

came for him on Frlday afternoons, and he stayed in Nashville

until Sunday afternoon, 43

4241111am Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, February 23,
1975,
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Chapter 3

THE MARCH OF A GHRTSTTAN SOLDIER
1923~

Thls chapter is an endeavor to recapture the cxper-
iences of Jilllam Henry Oliver as he went about as a minister.
The time span extends from his first serwon in 1923 into the
presente Being a Christian has permeated all areas of his
life. For the purposes of this paper, though, it seems best
to devote a separate chapter to his Christian service,

Henry Oliver preached his first sermon at the Chrise
tlan Church in Dcver, Tennessee during the summer of 1923,

Ii1s first sermon at a Free Will Baptist church came in the fall
of the same year at the Cumberland Association when convened

at Lrandon's Charel in Bumpus ills, Tennessee., The next few
sumners werc to be devoted to evangelistic worke.

His first »~vival in the summer of 1924 was at Lmen=-
uel's Chapel in Dickson Conntye. W. T. Hagewood was the pas=
tor of the churche. A numoer of people were saved. 3ro. Oliver's
pay was good for the times; he was pald seven dollars for

this revival, He was just a licensed minister, but this daid
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not affect his work for the rest of the surmer.l The meeting
at Hesds clomed July 26, sfter eight conversions and seven
additlons to the church. The next week found Bro. Oliver at

Ogklawn in Cheatham County helping Bro. D. T. Armstrong in

a meeting. [t was from there that he went home to Clarksville
for a week to be with his Dad in a revlival at Shady Grove.
Next, he was in a revival at Indian Mound. The Free Will Bap-
tist Church there was across the road from the present
Methodl st Church. It no longer exists. He received five dol-
lars from T. W. Seay, Jr. who was not a member of the church.
This was a super-generous contribution for that day.2 Begin-
ning August 24 he was with Bro. W. B, Davenport at New Hope in
Cheatham County.3 He went to Ashland City on a train and had
to walk almost all the way to New Hope. The first night he
used as his text Isalah 53, There were about twenty declslons
that night.

During this time Henry was serving as President of
the State Convention of the Free Will Baptist League, the
youth organization. It was through this work that he became
acquainted with the Free Will Baptists in East Nashville.

This group rented the upstalrs of an 0dd Fellows Hall at

Twelfth and Woodland Streets on August 1, 1924, For the next

1Statement by William Henry Oliver, personal
interview, July 5, 1974.

i March 13, 1975.
241111am Henry Oliver to Dale Edwards, ¥ "

t 5
3william Henry Oliver to Fannie Polston, August o,

1924, 0liver GCollection.
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two years Henry Oliver was theip pastor. He was pald four

dollars a week for his services. Since he still lived in

Clarksvlille during the Tirst of these years, he had to travel
by train to Nashville each weekend. If he rode the Tennessee
Central, he had fifteen or twenty cents left of his Four
dollars. If he took the Louisville and Nasnhville, the four
dollars was not quite enourh, He stayed in the home of lir.
and Nrs. Fred Polston at 318 Joodland Street on weekends. She
was a leader in the East Nashville Church, and is usually
known in Free Will Baptist history as Fannie Polston.%

A rather Important month in llenry Cliver's life was
October of 1924, At the Cumberland Assoclation in session at
Oaklawn he bnrezched the introductory sermor,, "Christianity's
Conguering liarch," based on Acts 1l:8. He wes also re-elected
a8 Clerk of the Assoclation, He was ordalned on October 24,
The Annual Presbytery met at the end of the Association. Rev.
Do T. Armstrong was elected Moderator and fev. J. H. Oliver
Clerk. The Ordaining Council consisted of fev. J. E. Hudgens,
Rev. A, D.Duncan, Rev. J. L. Welch, Rev. W. B, Davenport, and
Bro. G. . Fambroush. It was recommended tral Brothers John
ie Bovte and William Henry Oliver be ordained to the full
work of the ministry. They were then ordained by praying and

lavin~e on of hands, after which there wes 2 season of great

4Statement by Jilllam Henry Oliver, personal

intarview, July 5, 1974.
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5
rejoicing.” In the same month the East Nashville Church was

organized with eighteen members other than their pastor. The

official organizing ceremony was on November 2, 1924 with Bro.

Welch in charge. Here is g 1ist of the original members; the

asterisks indicate those deceased:

irs. O, C. Briley#

Mrs. Curtis Cantrell ¥p, Willlam D, Ray, v,

lirs. Alexine Black:t

Mrs. Irene Polston Coville Mrs. J. B, Smith

Mrs. Eva Drakes Mrs. Joe Smith*

lMrs. Dona Laynest Mrs. Ruth Stewart Edmundson
Mrs. Fannie Polston: Mrs. lMartha Stewart::

Mrs. J. P. Polston: Mr, D. E. Teasleys

Miss Candis Puckett Mrs. D, E., Teasley:
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